1982

St. Benedict's Hospital v. Board of Review of the Industrial Commission of Utah and Carol Petersen : Brief of Plaintiff

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an original proceeding brought before this Court to review the decision of the Board of Review of the Industrial Commission concerning a claim for unemployment compensation by defendant Carol Petersen.

DISPOSITION BEFORE THE COMMISSION

After unemployment compensation was initially denied by the Utah Department of Employment Security, a hearing was held before an appeals referee. The referee affirmed the denial of compensation based upon the finding that defendant Carol Petersen had voluntarily terminated her employment without good cause. The decision of the referee was appealed to the Board of Review which reversed the

previous finding and held that Carol Petersen was entitled to unemployment compensation.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiff seeks reversal of the decision rendered by the Board of Review and restitution of any amounts debited to Plaintiff's reserve account for the use and benefit of defendant Carol Petersen.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The facts in this controversy are relatively simple as evidenced by the small record filed in this matter. In order to simplify the existing record, however, Plaintiff will describe the chronological events occurring after defendant Carol Petersen's termination from St. Benedict's Hospital and will describe the circumstances of the termination as part of the proceedings during the appeal's referee hearing.

On July 8, 1981 Carol Petersen applied with the Utah Department of Employment Security for unemployment benefits. (R. 41). Shortly thereafter, a form was sent to St. Benedict's Hospital stating that Mrs. Petersen had given the reason for separation as "quit to accept other employment." The Hospital replied that the reason for unemployment was "voluntary resignation to stay home with family." (R. 40).

Petersen filed a form entitled "Claimant's Statement on Voluntary Quit" and stated that the main reason she left

work was "informed employer that I would be leaving later in the year--told to quit now." (Emphasis added). She further stated that she had interviewed with Hill Air Force Base and had a verbal promise of employment and was waiting for an opening. She stated she had no intention of leaving then. (R. 39). The examiner disqualified Mrs. Petersen from unemployment compensation on the grounds that she quit without good cause because of personal reasons. "Claimant's actions caused her to become unemployed." (R. 39).

In reaching this decision the examiner had interviewed Joe Featherston, the hospital's administrative supervisor, who stated that Petersen had gone to her immediate supervisor and told her she would be quitting in order to stay home with her family. She was told she would have to give thirty days notice and at the end of the thirty days she quit. Featherston told the examiner "nothing was mentioned of the claimant looking for other work." (R. 38).

Petersen was notified of this decision (R. 37) and shortly thereafter filed an appeal from the decision of the representative. She stated in her written statement that she left because of severe harrassment by her supervisor who she believed wanted to hire another nurse in her place. She wrote "I decided I could no longer stand untrue and highly emotional accusations of what a bad person I was."

She further stated that she was forced out of her position and that she believed she was entitled to compensation until she could find further work either in patient education or inservice. (R. 35-36).

On August 7 a notice was sent to Petersen that a hearing would be held on August 17 before the appeals section of the Department of Employment Security to determine whether the claimant was able to work and was available for work, whether the claimant voluntarily left work without good cause, and whether the claimant was discharged for an act or omission in connection with employment. (R. 34).

On August 18 the appeals referee entered findings that the claimant Carol Petersen had failed to appear for the hearing and therefore affirmed the determination of the department representative that she was not entitled to compensation since she had left work voluntarily without good cause. (R. 33).

On August 24 a "Notice to Appeals Section" was received in which it was stated by defendant Carol Petersen that she had been out of town when the notice to appear had arrived and did not return until after the hearing had been held. She requested a further hearing which was granted by the appeals referee for September 1, 1981. (R. 31-32).

On September 1, 1981 a hearing was held before Jerold E.

Luker, the appeals referee, with the claimant Carol Petersen testifying on her behalf and Joe Featherston testifying on behalf of St. Benedict's Hospital. A copy of this transcript is contained in the record. (R. 19-29). Briefly, Petersen stated that she was not working at the time of the hearing but had taught a class at Hill Air Force Base for a short period of time for a set fee of \$100.00. (R. 19-20). Prior to this she stated she had worked at St. Benedict's Hospital in orientation and patient teaching which included instructing new nurses that are hired at the hospital and also giving patients instruction on such things as diabetic treatment and pacemaker care. She noted that she was a registered nurse with a B.S. degree. (R. 19-20).

Petersen stated that the reason she quit was that she had felt harrassed from her supervisor. She stated that this "harrassment" had been going on for a couple of months and that she finally went to Mr. Featherston to speak with him concerning it. Petersen told Featherston that her supervisor kept informing her that she was not producing, was not doing her job, and always spoke with her at inappropriate times.

Petersen testified that at the meeting Mr. Featherston stated that he could see there was bad chemistry going on and it was decided by both of them that she should take a

leave of absence. She testified she did not want to quit St. Benedict's and had no intentions of ever quitting but, on the other hand, she said she could not stay in the environment because she was becoming physically ill. She admitted she had not sought a doctor's advice concerning her working conditions but diagnosed the problem herself since she was a nurse. (R. 23). Petersen proposed that her leave of absence should run two or three months until she could get her self-esteem back together. She had no intention to work elsewhere during that period of time.

She stated that there were other positions in the hospital that could use her training and experience but that she was denied a request for transfer. She wanted to transfer into a coronary care unit where she had previous training. Her employer denied this request but offered her to be a staff nurse in an unfamiliar area.

She related that she did not try to find any employment at the South Davis Hospital and that she had learned from a friend in mid-May there was nothing available at the McKay-Dee Hospital. (R. 23).

After talking to Mr. Featherston, Carol Petersen stated she went to see Pat Brown, Director of Nursing. Brown told her that she could not take a leave of absence and could not work in the coronary care unit. She said she could still

work at the hospital in other areas but Petersen felt these areas were not in her field of expertise.

Petersen stated that she asked Mr. Featherston what she needed to do in order to leave. He told her she would have to write a letter of resignation. Petersen stated that her supervisor typed out a little statement which said she would be leaving June 30 and "made me sign it." (R. 24).

Petersen testified that she was really sorry she signed it and that she should not have been pressured into it. She did not go over her supervisor's head to try to obtain an extra month since she just "gave up." She stated that she believed her supervisor made her sign the paper in order that she (Petersen) would be gone by June 30 since another girl would be coming in on July 1 who her supervisor wanted in Petersen's job. Petersen explained that she thought the sole purpose in pressuring her was to allow this other girl to begin work on July 1 since the new girl's husband had just started work at another hospital and they both wanted to begin at the same time. (R. 25).

Joe Featherston testified on behalf of the employer St. Benedict's Hospital. Mr. Featherston stated he was St. Benedict's Director of Human Resources and Support Services. He related that he was not Petersen's immediate supervisor but was the administrative person over that area.

Mr. Featherston recalled that Carol Petersen had come to him and told him she felt harrassed. Because of Mr. Featherston's prior discussions with Petersen's supervisor, he knew there had been attempts to try to get Petersen to come up to standard in a number of areas including absenteeism. He stated that Carol Petersen would plan trips without getting prior approval from her supervisor and that her general performance level was not up to what it should have been. He stated that her supervisor was attempting to counsel her to get her up to a performance and attendance standard that could be accepted. (R. 26).

During the conversation Mr. Featherston testified that Petersen stated her supervisor had been harrassing her and that there seemed to be no way to please her. Mr. Featherston stated, "She seemed to be at a point where she was willing to just chuck it and quit." Featherston suggested that she should transfer to another area and arranged for an interview with Pat Brown, Director of Nursing.

Petersen was not placed in the coronary care unit since her best friend was the head nurse of that unit and the administration felt that it would not be a healthy relationship for either of them. Mr. Featherston stated "it would put undue pressure on the head nurse for that type of relationship and it wouldn't be healthy for Carol either."

Petersen was offered a night position but she did not accept it. After her conversation with Pat Brown, Petersen came back to Mr. Featherston and said "I'm going to quit." She told Mr. Featherston that she had talked to her supervisor and told her she would be available through July but Mr. Featherston related that the hospital policies required only thirty days notice and that it would be in the best interests of everyone to only have thirty more days of work rather than sixty. (R. 25). Had Petersen told him that she wished to work through July it possibly could have been arranged.

During the thirty-day period Petersen again talked to Mr. Featherston and told him she was surprised that she only had thirty days left. Mr. Featherston explained to Petersen that the hospital policy was thirty days in order to allow a new person to fill the position.

Mr. Featherston testified that the hospital had a policy and procedure for harrassment and that each employee received a manual describing the formal grievance procedure. (R. 27). He recalled that Petersen never utilized this procedure in complaining about the harrassment. Featherston also denied that Petersen had been pushed out for the purpose of making room for another person since the hospital did not begin its search until after she gave the hospital her notice of

her intention to terminate employment. The search was both internal and external and it took some time before the proper candidate was found.

On rebuttal Petersen admitted that there was a grievance policy procedure at the hospital but did not follow it because she thought complaining to Mr. Featherston would be enough. (R. 28-29). She stated that she believed she had been harrassed by the actions of her supervisor in criticizing her at strategic times and preventing her from doing needed things. She concluded by saying that she did not appeal this harrassment since her supervisor was a powerful person and she did not feel she would have any chance in swaying judgments. (R. 29).

On September 16, 1981 a decision was rendered by the appeal referee concluding that the claimant Carol Petersen had voluntarily left work without good cause. Basically, the referee found that the claimant's work had not been fully accepted and that she had been reprimanded by her supervisor for the areas of deficiency but that her job was not in jeopardy and the employer did not plan to discharge her. He found that the claimant did not have any prospects for more suitable work at the time she left St. Benedict's Hospital. The referee concluded that since Petersen made no attempt to extend an additional month after signing the notice of

resignation that she voluntarily agreed to the June 30, 1981 date. He concluded by stating:

There is evidence that the claimant had less than a fully satisfactory relationship with her supervisor. The poor relationship appears to have been due to the claimant's rejection of instructions given to her by her supervisor in the normal course of supervisor/subordinate interactions, and not to any willful attempt by the supervisor to harrass the claimant. Personnel policy of the hospital as contained in written information made available to the claimant provides an avenue for relief to employees who feel they have been wrongfully or unfairly treated. The claimant was aware of the remedies available to her, yet she chose not to pursue them. The appeals referee concludes that the situation was not so compelling as to constitute good cause for leaving work within the meaning of the Utah Employment Security Act. (R. 15-16).

On September 24, 1981 Petersen wrote a letter to the appeals referee responding to the decision. (R. 12-14). A rebuttal to Mrs. Petersen's letter was filed by Mr. Featherston on October 2, 1981. (R. 9-10). An appeal was docketed with the Board of Review of the Industrial Commission and a decision was rendered by the Board on November 10, 1981. The decision of the appeals referee was reversed. The Board gave the following explanation for the reversal.

In reversing the decision of the Appeal Referee the Board of Review notes the claimant's testimony that on several occasions she was criticized by her supervisor just before conducting training sessions and that she was denied a transfer to another assignment for which she was experienced solely because the supervisor of the new unit would have been a friend of the

claimant's. The claimant's testimony regarding these circumstances was undisputed by the employer's representative. Although such circumstances are not compelling and therefore do not constitute good cause, they are sufficiently mitigating as to give reason to the claimant's decision to leave work. The record indicates that the claimant immediately commenced a search for work upon leaving her employment. Therefore, a denial of benefits in the instant case would be contrary to equity and good conscience. (R. 6). (Emphasis added).

It is from this decision that the present petition for writ of review is taken. (R. 2).

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE BOARD OF REVIEW WAS ERRONEOUS IN THAT IT INCORRECTLY INTERPRETED THE UNEMPLOYMENT SECURITY ACT IN A MANNER CONTRARY TO LAW.

Plaintiff acknowledges that in order to overturn the decision of the Board of Review it must show that such decision was arbitrary, capricious, unreasonable, or as a matter of law the determination was wrong. Continental Oil Co. v. Board of Review of Industrial Commission, 568 P.2d 727 (Utah 1977). However, even with this difficult burden Plaintiff believes that in the instant case the Board of Review clearly erred as a matter of law and therefore must be reversed.

The statute upon which compensation was originally denied is found in Section 35-4-5(a) in the 1981 pocket supplement to the Utah Code. This section has been amended several times with the last amendment being in 1979.

Prior to the 1979 amendment the statute provided that an individual would be ineligible for benefits if the claimant left work voluntarily without good cause. Thus, the previous standard of "good cause" had been established for many years and this Court defined such requirement in Denby v. Board of Review of the Industrial Commission, 567 P.2d 626 (Utah 1977).

In the Denby case this Court quoted from various authorities in elaborating the "good cause" requirement of the statute. This Court stated the following:

What is "good cause" must reflect the underlying purpose of the act to relieve against the distress of involuntary unemployment. The seeming paradox of allowing benefits to an individual whose unemployment is of his own volition disappears when the context of the words is viewed in that light. The Legislature contemplated that when an individual voluntarily leaves a job under the pressure of circumstances which may reasonably be viewed as having compelled him to do so, the termination of his employment is involuntary for purposes of the Act. In statutory contemplation he cannot then reasonably be judged as free to stay at the job. Id. at 630.

This Court further elaborated the procedure for establishing "good cause" and its definition by stating the following:

The initial determination of "good cause" for voluntarily leaving employment, is a mixed question of law and fact for the administrative agency. A claimant has the burden of showing good cause for leaving, when he voluntarily terminates suitable employment. "Good cause" has been defined as "such cause as would similarly affect persons of reasonable and normal sensitivity,

and is limited to those instances where the unemployment is caused by external pressures so compelling that a reasonably prudent person, exercising ordinary common sense and prudence, would be justified in quitting under similar circumstances. Id. at 630.

The "good cause" standard is adopted throughout the country to determine whether voluntary termination justifies unemployment compensation. Cases similar to the instant one have held that "good cause" is not established when a superintendent criticizes a worker for substandard work, Boodry v. Eddy Bakeries Co., 397 P.2d 256 (Idaho 1964), and when an employee fails to follow grievance procedures as to disputes in the conditions of employment. Beaman v. Aynes, 393 P.2d 152 (Ariz. 1964).

The Board of Review in this case recognized that the claim by Carol Petersen of harrassment by her supervisor was not substantiated by the facts and that the evidence showed she was being reprimanded for substandard performance. The Board also recognized that her failure to be transferred to another unit upon request did not constitute good cause. Specifically, the Board stated that such "circumsntaces are not compelling and therefore do not constitute good cause." (R. 6).

The error in the Board's decision results from the language contained in the 1979 amendment to Section 35-4-5(a).

The present statute still retains the original "good cause" language for compensation but then states the following additional caveat:

Provided, that no claimant shall be ineligible for benefits if the claimant leaves work under circumstances of such a nature that it would be contrary to equity and good conscience to impose a disqualification.

The Commission shall in cooperation with the employer consider for the purposes of this Act, the reasonableness of the claimant's actions, and the extent to which the actions evidence a genuine continuing attachment to the labor market in reaching a determination of whether the ineligibility of a claimant is contrary to equity and good conscience.

The 1979 amendment has created an apparent inconsistency in the application of this section. The first portion of the statute requires a "good cause" determination if benefits are to be received. The added portion, however, seemingly negates this requirement by applying a standard of "equity and good conscience."

Plaintiff has been unable to find any similar wording of a statute in the United States in which "equity and good conscience" applies to qualifications of unemployment benefits. The term, however, is frequently used in statutes in which over-payment of claims has occurred and the recipient claimant is requested to pay back the previous wrongful payments.

These decisions indicate that the term "equity and good conscience" is "an elastic expression" of "unusual generality"

which "anticipates that the trier of fact, instead of attempting to channelize his decision within rigid and specific rules, will draw upon precepts of justice and morality as the basis for his ruling." See City of Leadville v. Sewer Co., 107 P. 801 (Colo. 1909); Gilles v. Dept. of Human Resources Development, 521 P.2d 110 (Cal. 1974).

The Gilles decision is the leading authority on describing the terms "equity and good conscience." This decision noted that the term had its probable source from the 1974 Social Security Act. The Act defined these terms as follows:

Against "equity and good conscience" means that adjustment or recovery of an incorrect payment . . . will be considered inequitable if an individual, because of a notice that such payment would be made or by reason of the incorrect payment, relinquished a valuable right . . . or changed his position for the worse. . . . 20 C.F.R. 404.509 (1979).

The California Supreme Court noted that the term "equity and good conscience" is an extremely general term with virtually no boundary or limitation except in the mind of the chancellor. The court noted that Black's Law Dictionary states the following:

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