1982

# St. Benedict's Hospital v. Board of Review of the Industrial Commission of Utah and Carol Petersen : Defendant's Brief

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

THAT IN REVIEWING DETERMINATIONS OF THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION UNDER THE UTAH EMPLOYMENT SECURITY ACT THE COURT WILL AFFIRM THE FINDINGS OF THE BOARD OF REVIEW IF SUCH ARE SUSTAINED BY SUBSTANTIAL COMPETENT EVIDENCE.

The standard of review in unemployment insurance cases is well established. Section 35-4-10(i), Utah Code Annotated, 1953, provides in part:

In any judicial proceedings under this section the findings of the Commission and the Board of Review as to the facts if supported by evidence shall be conclusive and the jurisdiction of said Court shall be confined to questions of law.

This Court has consistently held that where the findings of the Commission and the Board of Review are supported by evidence, they will not be disturbed. Martinez v. Board of Review, 25 U. 2d 131, 477 P. 2d 587 (1970). In analyzing the above-referenced review provision, this Court has stated:

Under Section 35-4-10(i) the role of this Court is to sustain the determination of the Board of Review unless the record clearly and persuasively proves the action of the Board of Review was arbitrary, capricious, and unreasonable. Specifically, as a matter of law, the determination was wrong; because only the opposite conclusion could be drawn from the facts. Continental Oil Company v. Board of Review of the Industrial Commission of Utah, (Utah, 1977) 568 P. 2d 727, 729.

## POINT II

SECTION 35-4-5(a), UTAH CODE ANNOTATED 1953, AS AMENDED, IS INTENDED TO DISQUALIFY FROM THE RECEIPT OF UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS ONLY THOSE INDIVIDUALS WHO ARE UNEMPLOYED BY REASON OF THEIR OWN FAULT.

Section 35-4-5(a), Utah Code Annotated, 1953, (Pocket Supplement, 1979)

provides:

5. An individual shall be ineligible for benefits or for purposes of establishing a waiting period:

(a) For the week in which the claimant left work voluntarily without good cause, if so found by the commission, and for each week thereafter until the claimant has performed services in bona fide covered employment and earned wages for such services equal to at least six times the claimant's weekly benefit amount; provided, that no claimant shall be ineligible for benefits if the claimant leaves work under circumstances of such a nature that it would be contrary to equity and good conscience to impose a disqualification.

The commission shall in cooperation with the employer consider for the purposes of this act, the reasonableness of the claimant's actions, and the extent to which the actions evidence a genuine continuing attachment to the labor market in reaching a determination of whether the ineligibility of a claimant is contrary to equity and good conscience.

This Court has previously held that the purpose of the Employment Security Act is to assist a worker and his family in times when he is out of work without fault on his part. Kennecott Copper Corporation Employees v. Department of Employment Security, 13 U. 2d 262, 372 P. 2d 987 (1962); and that the Department is to determine a claimant's eligibility for unemployment compensation by adhering to the volitional test. Olaf Nelson Construction Company v. The Industrial Commission, 121 U. 521, 243 P. 2d 951 (1952); Mills v. Gronning, (Utah, 1978) 581 P. 2d 1334.

### POINT III

THE UTAH EMPLOYMENT SECURITY ACT BEING REMEDIAL IN CHARACTER SHOULD BE LIBERALLY CONSTRUED AND ADMINISTERED TO EFFECTUATE ITS PURPOSES BUT DISQUALIFICATION OR FORFEITURE PROVISIONS SHOULD BE STRICTLY CONSTRUED.

This Court has heretofore held that the Employment Security Act, hereinafter referred to as the Act, being remedial in character, should be liberally construed and administered to effectuate its purposes, which include lightening the burdens of unemployment and maintaining purchasing power in the economy. Singer Sewing Machine Co. v. Industrial Commission, 104 U. 175, 134 P. 2d 479, 485 (1943); Northern Oil Co. v. Industrial Commission, 104 U. 353, 140 P. 2d 329, 332 (1943); Johnson v. Board of Review of Industrial Commission, 7 U. 2d 113, 320 P. 2d 315, 318 (1958).

On the other hand, in construing Section 5(b)(1) of the Act in Continental Oil Co. v. Board of Review of the Industrial Commission of Utah, *Supra*, at p. 730, this Court relied upon the reasoning of the Supreme Court of Wisconsin in Boynton Cab Co. v. Neubeck, 237 Wis. 249, 296 N.W. 636, 640 (1941) for the principle that:

. . . [A] statute for a forfeiture should be strictly construed, and an ambiguous or doubtful term should be given a construction which is least likely to work a forfeiture. The penal character of the provision should be minimized by excluding, rather than including, conduct not clearly intended to be within the provision.

While the Continental Oil Co. case dealt with Section 5(b)(1) rather than Section 5(a) of the Act, the above reasoning is applicable to this case in that both provide for a forfeiture if certain facts exist.

#### POINT IV

THE BOARD OF REVIEW PROPERLY INTERPRETED THE EQUITY AND GOOD CONSCIENCE EXCEPTION TO THE VOLUNTARY QUIT DISQUALIFICATION CONTAINED IN SECTION 35-4-5(a) OF THE EMPLOYMENT SECURITY ACT

The Appellant contends that the Board of Review erred in its interpretation of the "equity and good conscience" provision of Section 5(a) of the Act. Appellant contends at page 18 of its Brief that:

The interpretation given by the Board of Review would make the "good cause" language in the statute meaningless.

Further, Appellant contends, at page 20-21 of its Brief that:

It would not be reasonable for a person to leave their employment merely because they have been criticized on several occasions by their supervisor regardless of when these occasions occurred. Likewise, it would not be reasonable for a person to leave their employment when they are denied a transfer due to the employer's policy of preventing conflicts between best friends in a subordinate and superior position. The Board would have concluded that these factors were not sufficient to justify the voluntary termination under the "good cause" mandate.

It is important to note the actual decision of the Board of Review. The Board held that although the claimant did not have good cause for voluntarily leaving work, a denial of benefits would be contrary to equity and good conscience within the intent and purposes of the Employment Security Act. (R.0006)

The basis for the Board's decision was:

. . . the claimant's testimony that on several occasions she was criticized by her supervisor just before conducting training sessions and that she was denied a transfer

to another assignment for which she was experienced solely because the supervisor of the new unit would have been a friend of the claimant's. The claimant's testimony regarding these circumstances was undisputed by the employer's representative.

In order to determine whether the decision of the Board of Review is supported by substantial, competent evidence, it is first necessary to understand the legal basis of the decision.

The history of the 1979 amendments to the Employment Security Act, Senate Bill 78, illuminates the intent of the Legislature in providing an "equity and good conscience" exception to the voluntary quit disqualification.

Prior to July 1, 1979, Section 5(a) of the Employment Security Act, provided that a claimant who voluntarily quit work shall be disqualified for six weeks. If the commission found mitigating circumstances to exist, the commission could assess a disqualification of less than six weeks. At the conclusion of the disqualification period, whether it was for six weeks or less, a claimant could re-file for and receive unemployment benefits. For many years the management representatives on the Employment Security Advisory Council had sought to change the six week disqualification to an indefinite disqualification which could be purged only by returning to work for a period of time and then becoming unemployed through no fault of the claimant. Their concern undoubtedly was centered on the payment of benefits to individuals, such as secondary wage earners who were not genuinely attached to the labor market, but rather worked only enough to qualify for benefits, accepted the six week disqualification, and then proceeded to draw benefits until they had



exhausted their claims. This was subsequently expressed by the Legislative Auditor General. (See A Performance Audit of the Unemployment Insurance Program in Utah, May 1978, Report to the Utah State Legislature, No. 78-9, pages 6-9.) The labor representatives to the Advisory Council, of course, resisted such efforts because of their concern for those claimants who may not have been compelled to quit, but quit under mitigating circumstances sufficient to result in less than the full disqualification. For an excellent discussion of the role and history of the Utah Employment Security Council, see Shared Government in Employment Security, by S. J. Becker, Columbia University Press (1959), Chapter 5, pp. 155-142, (available at the BYU Harold B. Lee Library or the Department of Employment Security Library). See also Minutes of the Advisory Council Meetings for 1978, available at the Department of Employment Security Administrative Office, 174 Social Hall Avenue, Salt Lake City. A portion of the Minutes of the Advisory Council Subcommittee are also attached hereto as Appendice.

As mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the Legislative Auditor General's Staff conducted a performance audit of the unemployment insurance program during 1978. Recognizing the role of the Advisory Council, which was established pursuant to Section 35-4-11(e), U.C.A. 1953, the Legislative Auditor's Staff met with an Advisory Council Subcommittee on June 8, 1978, and presented the results of their audit, recommending certain changes in the Employment Security Act. See Minutes of the Subcommittee Meeting, Appendix I, herein. In response to the expressed concerns of the Legislative



Auditor General and others, the Advisory Council met several times thereafter, culminating in the drafting of a bill to amend the Employment Security Act which was subsequently submitted to the 1979 Legislature and became designated as Senate Bill 78. Senate Bill 78 was the result of substantial negotiations between the labor and employer representatives on the Advisory Council Subcommittee. The concerns of labor and employer representatives with respect to voluntary quit, as mentioned in the preceding paragraph, were resolved with a compromise proposal for an indefinite disqualification unless a denial of benefits would be contrary to equity and good conscience.

The Advisory Council requested that the Department of Employment Security prepare a memorandum explaining how the equity and good conscience exception to the disqualification should be applied. A memorandum was issued on October 13, 1978 and officially adopted by the Advisory Council Subcommittee on October 18, 1978. See Appendice II and III. It is interesting to note in this regard that the motion to adopt the memorandum was made by one of the labor representatives and seconded by the employer representative. See Advisory Council Letterhead, Appendix IV. Note also that in its report to the Legislature the Advisory Council explained the effort that went into the development of Senate Bill 78 as follows:

The attached Senate Bill 78 is the result of nearly a year of meetings which included the study of the laws of other states and the Legislative Auditor's report, open hearings where special interest groups could express their concerns and, finally, a great deal of negotiation primarily between the employer and employee representatives over what changes to make and the wording of those changes.

Appellant argues at page 20 of its Brief that the term "reasonable" as used in defining equity and good conscience in Section 5(a) must have the same meaning as used in judicial definitions of "good cause" for quitting work. However, as can be seen from Appendix II herein, the Advisory Council had negotiated an exception to the good cause requirement that would allow benefits when mitigating circumstances exist. If the term "reasonable" must be applied under the equity and good conscience provision only with the same meaning as that term is used for the "good cause" standard, then obviously there would have been no need for the exception which was negotiated by the labor and management representatives on the Advisory Council.

In addition, floor debate on the Senate confirms the intent of the members of the Advisory Council and the acceptance of that intent by the Legislature. During the third reading of Senate Bill 78, Senator Halverson proposed an amendment to the bill, which raised an objection from the bill sponsor, Senator Black. Senator Black moved that the Senate be formed into a Committee of the Whole in order to question a representative of the Department of Employment Security concerning the intent of the Advisory Council. Mr. Floyd Astin, General Counsel for the Utah Department of Employment Security, testified as to the reason for having an equity and good conscience provision in the following manner:

. . . good cause, the courts have generally ruled this, this is language in all, most jurisdictions. Generally they rule that good cause is what a reasonable prudent person would do. There is a lot of language, but it boils down basically to that. And there are areas, however, they're in that gray land that it is hard to say its this; its not good cause, but he had some good reasons for what he did. And this is what this language is

trying to get at. (Refer to 1979 Legislative Session, Senate Journal, page 340, and recording of the afternoon session of day 22.)

Contrary to Appellant's contention that the equity and good conscience provision of the Act is an unlimited standard, the Legislature structured the discretion the commission may exercise in cases such as this. In making decisions under Section 5(a) of the Act, the commission must look to the purposes of the Act which are (1) to assist the worker and his family in times when, without fault on his part, he is out of work and (2) to provide stability for the economy by assuring continuity of purchasing power. Lexes v. Industrial Commission, 121 U. 551, 243 P. 2d 964 (1952); Kennecott Copper Corporation Employees v. Department of Employment Security, Supra; Johnson v. Board of Review of the Industrial Commission, Supra. It is apparent from the fact that the Legislature did not eliminate the "at fault" concept in unemployment cases, that the Legislature must have intended a melding or blending of the fault concept with the purpose of maintaining purchasing power in the community when an individual becomes unemployed by reason of a voluntary quit, but under mitigating circumstances. For that reason, the commission is required to also look at the reasonableness of the claimant's actions under the circumstances and whether or not the claimant's actions contain evidence of a genuine continuing attachment to the labor market.

At page 14 of its Brief, Appellant cites Boodry v. Eddy Bakeries Co., 397 P. 2d 256 (Idaho 1964), as a similar case to the instant one which "held that 'good cause' is not established when a superintendent criticizes a worker for substandard work."

In Boodry, the claimant tried, in part, to justify her voluntary quit on the ground that the superintendent threatened her as follows:

Well, Jack Hall, every time you didn't do anything he wanted you to do just exactly, he always comes up with this little statement like, "You're not indispensable", and that's just like a threat saying if you don't do such-and-such, we're going to get rid of you.

Appellee submits that "threat" is distinguishable from the present case where the supervisor, knowing it was inappropriate timing, criticized claimant's performance just before claimant was to teach classes and thus sabotaged her effectiveness to the point that claimant was made physically ill.

Beaman v. Aynes, 393 P. 2d 152 (Ariz. 1964), cited by Appellant at page 14 of its Brief, as precedent that "good cause" is not established "when an employee fails to follow grievance procedures as to disputes in the condition of employment" is also distinguishable from the present case. In Beaman the claimant quit when the employer refused to pay \$8.16 of additional pay the claimant claimed was due under the collective bargaining agreement. Subsequent to quitting the claimant submitted his grievance through the union and was paid his additional \$8.16. In the instant case the claimant had no union to turn to and even though she failed to utilize the formal grievance procedure, the Director of her supervisor to whom she did complain didn't see the formal grievance procedure as appropriate when they were discussing the matter. (R.0028) Appellant submits claimant demonstrated an effort to work out her grievances to a point where further efforts would be futile. See Denby v. Board of Review, 567 P. 2d 626, 627 (Utah, 1977).

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